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Quarterly Regulatory Update 
 
Materials from March 29, 2017 through June 19, 2017 

Presented by: Tim Tedrick, Partner, CRCM, CRP 



Tim Tedrick 
Partner 
Wipfli LLP 
 
Tim is a partner with the accounting firm of Wipfli LLP Ltd. He 
has more than 40 years of experience, the first eleven with a 
bank, and the remaining with Wipfli where he now heads up the 
compliance team. He was the compliance officer, cashier, 
security officer and one of the loan officers when he left the 
bank. Since then he has performed consultations for various 
sized financial institutions in six states to help the institutions 
prepare for examinations by regulators. A graduate of the ABA 
National Graduate Compliance School in Norman, Oklahoma, 
he is also a Certified Regulatory Compliance Manager and a 
Certified Risk Professional. He has taught at various state 
banking schools and has given training sessions to banks on a 
regular basis. His firm provides traditional accounting, audit 
consulting and tax services to approximately 600 financial 
institutions on an ongoing basis. 
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BSA 
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BSA to do list 

• Download the CSBS BSA/AML Self-Assessment Tool and 
evaluate whether it is a way to enhance your BSA risk 
assessment 

• Share with management/board the information about FinCEN 
fine against California bank 

• Check the SAR Stats for trends in your geographic area 
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FinCEN FATF Advisory  

FIN-2017-A002 

• I. Jurisdictions that are subject to the FATF’s call for 
countermeasures or are subject to EDD due to their AML/CFT 
deficiencies 

• There have been no changes to this list 

• II. Jurisdictions identified by the FATF as having AML/CFT 
deficiencies 
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FinCEN FATF Advisory  

• Summary of Changes to this List 

• Ethiopia has been added to the FATF listing and monitoring 
process due to a lack of effective implementation of its AML/CFT 
framework 
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FinCEN Settlement with Former 
MoneyGram 

• The Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (FinCEN) and the 
U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of New York  

•  The settlement of claims under the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) 
against Thomas E. Haider, the former Chief Compliance Officer 
of MoneyGram International, Inc. Mr. Haider has agreed to a 
three-year injunction barring him from performing a compliance 
function for any money transmitter and has agreed to pay a 
$250,000 penalty 
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FinCEN Settlement with Former 
MoneyGram 

• For the following, among other things:  (1) failing to terminate 
specific MoneyGram outlets after being presented with 
information that strongly indicated that the outlets were 
complicit in consumer fraud schemes; (2) failing to implement a 
policy for terminating outlets that posed a high risk of fraud;  
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FinCEN Settlement with Former 
MoneyGram 

• and (3) structuring MoneyGram’s anti-money laundering (AML) 
program such that information that MoneyGram’s Fraud 
Department had aggregated about outlets, including the 
number of reports of consumer fraud that particular outlets had 
accumulated over specific time periods, was not generally 
provided to the MoneyGram analysts who were responsible for 
filing suspicious activity reports with FinCEN. 
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FinCEN Settlement with Former 
MoneyGram 

•  “FinCEN relies on compliance professionals from every corner 
of the financial industry,” said Acting FinCEN Director Jamal El-
Hindi. “FinCEN and our law enforcement partners need their 
judgment and their skills to effectively fight money laundering, 
fraud, and terrorist financing. Compliance professionals occupy 
unique positions of trust in our financial system. When that trust 
is broken, it is important that we take action so that the 
reputations of thousands of talented compliance officers are not 
diminished by any one individual’s outlying egregious actions.  
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Update Regarding Imposition of Fifth 
Special Measure against FBME Bank 

• Update Regarding Imposition of Fifth Special Measure against 
FBME Bank, Ltd 

• On April 28, 2017, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of 
Columbia Circuit denied FBME's motion for stay pending appeal.  
Accordingly, the Final Rule is in effect. FBME is appealing the 
district court's decision. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 

• Network (FinCEN) held its third annual Law Enforcement Awards 
ceremony 

• FinCEN presented awards to law enforcement agencies that use 
Bank Secrecy Act reporting provided by financial institutions in 
their criminal investigations 
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•  SAR Review Task Force: New York State Police 

• The impetus of the investigation was a single financial 
institution reporting an unusual pattern of cash deposits.  The 
reporting bank indicated that it believed much of the cash was 
derived from the illegal sale of marijuana.  The funds were 
rapidly withdrawn from ATM locations across the United States 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• Investigators identified many additional reports containing 
sensitive financial information, dating back another year, 
indicating similar activity in this account. 

• Further investigation demonstrated that these individuals were 
connected to a larger criminal organization than originally 
believed, allowing the organization to be considered an 
“enterprise” and eligible to be charged under the Racketeer 
Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• As a result of this multi-agency investigation, law enforcement 
successfully seized 16 firearms, 14 kilos of cocaine, 12 pounds 
of marijuana, 90 grams of crack cocaine, 153 grams of heroin, 
75 oxycodone pills, $200,000 in cash, and several vehicles. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



•  Transnational Organized Crime: Federal Bureau of Investigation 
(FBI) 

• The FBI initiated an investigation after receiving a referral from 
local law enforcement regarding an individual suspected of 
carrying out various fraud and money laundering schemes.  A 
review of sensitive financial information identified a high volume 
of data enabling investigators to identify 80 accounts controlled 
by the primary target and identify funds that appeared to be 
derived from criminal activity.  
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• Authorities arrested and indicted the targets on various money 
laundering, fraud, and conspiracy charges. Several suspects 
pled guilty before their cases went to trial.  Several targets went 
to trial, where all defendants were convicted on all counts. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



•  Transnational Security Threats: Federal Bureau of Investigation 
(FBI) 

• The FBI used a high volume of sensitive financial information 
over several years during the course of its investigation into a 
criminal organization moving hundreds of millions of U.S. dollars 
to support foreign nuclear and ballistic missile programs. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• The investigation ultimately led to criminal charges of 
conspiracy to commit money laundering, bank fraud, and 
sanctions violations through two separate indictments against 
nine individuals, including an officer of a foreign bank.  
Prosecution of these individuals is still pending. Criminal 
forfeiture totals are expected to reach hundreds of millions of 
dollars. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• Cyber Threats: Internal Revenue Service-Criminal Investigation 
(IRS-CI) 

• Sensitive financial information identified during the course of 
this investigation detailed specific information that corroborated 
the financial and personal information of the subjects of the 
investigation.  The data also indicated that the subjects were 
using Bitcoins in an effort to conceal their illicit proceeds.  
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• The information identified in the financial data and from 
subpoenas issued to numerous financial institutions and Bitcoin 
exchanges helped clarify the convoluted series of transactions 
conducted to launder the funds. 

• The targets of this investigation were arrested on various drug 
charges, at which point several search warrants were issued on 
several locations where methamphetamine, marijuana, and 
numerous firearms were discovered.  
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• The targets were subsequently indicted and pled guilty to 
various drug and money laundering charges.  This is notable 
since this is the first case in this particular Midwest district 
where money laundering charges were approved based on 
Bitcoin transactions. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



•  Significant Fraud: Defense Criminal Investigative Service 
(DCIS) 

•  DCIS initiated a long-term investigation based on structuring 
and excessive credit card charges identified by multiple financial 
institutions on a single individual.  Two different working groups 
identified the transaction data and referred it for further 
investigation.  Investigators determined that one of the subjects 
was transferring funds to a company providing subcontractor 
support for a military contract in Afghanistan. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• Further investigation determined that the company receiving 
the funds was a shell company owned by a U.S. military official 
to conceal bribery payments he was receiving in exchange for 
helping the primary target win contracts. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• The targets of this investigation eventually pled guilty to various 
conspiracy, money laundering, obstruction, and fraud charges.  
Investigators seized $12.3 million in assets from the primary 
target and his employer and the military official, including real 
property, vehicles, boats, aircrafts, firearms, gold coins, and 
bank accounts. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• Third-Party Money Launderers:  Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) 

• Over the course of 18 months, HSI investigators utilized an 
extensive volume of sensitive financial information to assist in 
their investigation into a large-scale illegal third-party money 
laundering organization.  
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• The investigation began based largely on information gleaned 
from a FinCEN-issued Geographic Targeting Order (GTO).  This 
GTO required armored car services importing or exporting funds 
through two specific geographies in the southwest border region 
to acquire additional identifying information on certain 
transactions. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



• As a result of the investigation and discovery of the money 
laundering scheme, both individuals pled guilty to violations 
regarding failures to maintain an effective anti-money 
laundering program.  They also lost all licenses necessary to 
operate as an MSB and forfeited hundreds of thousands of U.S. 
dollars and Mexican pesos. 
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FinCEN Awards Recognize Law Enforcement 
Success Stories Supported by Bank Secrecy 



Fact Sheet on Cuba Policy whitehouse.gov 

• Fact Sheet on Cuba Policy 

• JUNE 16, 2017 AT 1:05 PM ET BY THE WHITE HOUSE 

• President Donald J. Trump is changing the policy of the United 
States toward Cuba  
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Fact Sheet on Cuba Policy whitehouse.gov 

• Travel for non-academic educational purposes will be limited to 
group travel. The self-directed, individual travel permitted by 
the Obama administration will be prohibited. Cuban-Americans 
will be able to continue to visit their family in Cuba and send 
them remittances. The policy reaffirms the United States 
statutory embargo of Cuba and opposes calls in the United 
Nations and other international forums for its termination. 
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Fact Sheet on Cuba Policy whitehouse.gov 

• The policy memorandum directs the Treasury and Commerce 
Departments to begin the process of issuing new regulations 
within 30 days. The policy changes will not take effect until 
those Departments have finalized their new regulations, a 
process that may take several months. 
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Fact Sheet on Cuba Policy whitehouse.gov 

• How will OFAC implement the changes to the Cuba sanctions 
program announced by the President on June 16, 2017?  Are 
the changes effective immediately? 
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Fact Sheet on Cuba Policy whitehouse.gov 

• OFAC will implement the Treasury-specific changes via 
amendments to its Cuban Assets Control Regulations.  The 
Department of Commerce will implement any necessary 
changes via amendments to its Export Administration 
Regulations.  OFAC expects to issue its regulatory amendments 
in the coming months.  The announced changes do not take 
effect until the new regulations are issued. 
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BSA to do list 

• Add Ethiopia to your list of countries to monitor for wire transfer 
or other international transactions 

• Share with management/board the information about FinCEN 
settlement with the MoneyGram executive and clarify personal 
liability risk 

• Update/add the Section 311 Special Measure against FBME 
Bank, Ltd. 
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BSA to do list 

• Share the FinCEN law enforcement success stories in upcoming 
BSA training 

• If you have exposure to Cuba OFAC risk, monitor the 
forthcoming regulations based on the new presidential policy 
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Loans 
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CFPB CMP Nationstar Mortgage HMDA 

• The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB) today 
ordered Nationstar Mortgage LLC to pay a $1.75 million 
civil penalty for violating the Home Mortgage Disclosure 
Act (HMDA) by consistently failing to report accurate data 
about mortgage transactions for 2012 through 2014. 
Today’s action   is the largest HMDA civil penalty imposed 
by the Bureau to date. 
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CFPB CMP Nationstar Mortgage HMDA 

•  Nationstar, a nationwide nonbank mortgage lender 
headquartered in Coppell, Texas, is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. With nearly 3 million 
customers, Nationstar Mortgage Holdings is a major participant 
in the mortgage servicing and origination markets.  
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CFPB CMP Nationstar Mortgage HMDA 

• According to 2014 data, Nationstar was the ninth-largest HMDA 
reporter by total mortgage originations, the sixth largest by 
applications received, and the 13th largest by money lent. 

• The CFPB found that Nationstar’s HMDA compliance systems 
were flawed, and generated mortgage lending data with 
significant, preventable errors. 
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CFPB CMP Nationstar Mortgage HMDA 

• The samples reviewed by the CFPB showed substantial error 
rates in three consecutive reporting years, even after that 
settlement was reached. In the samples reviewed, the CFPB 
found error rates of 13 percent in 2012, 33 percent in 2013, 
and 21 percent in 2014. 
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CFPB CMP Nationstar Mortgage HMDA 

• Pay a $1.75 million penalty: Nationstar will pay a $1.75 million 
penalty to the CFPB’s Civil Penalty Fund 

• Develop and implement an effective compliance management 
system Nationstar will assess and undertake any necessary 
improvements to its HMDA compliance management system to 
prevent future violations 

• Fix HMDA reporting inaccuracies: Nationstar must review, 
correct, and make available its corrected HMDA data from 
2012–14 
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FDIC Affordable Mortgage Lending Guide 
FHLB Appendix A 

• Appendix A: FHLB Summaries  

• FHLB of Atlanta Overview  

• States Served: 

• Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Maryland, North Carolina, South 
Carolina, Virginia, and the District of Columbia  
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FDIC Affordable Mortgage Lending Guide  
FHLB Appendix A 

• FHLB of Boston Overview  

• States Served:  

• Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode 
Island, and Vermont  
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FDIC Affordable Mortgatge Lending Guide  
FHLB Appendix A 

• FHLB of Chicago Overview  

• States Served:  

•  Illinois and Wisconsin  

• FHLB of Cincinnati Overview  

•  States Served:  

• Kentucky, Ohio, Tennessee  
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FDIC Affordable Mortgage Lending Guide  
FHLB Appendix A 

•  FHLB of Dallas Overview  

• States Served: 

• Arkansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, New Mexico, and Texas  
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FDIC Affordable Mortgage Lending Guide  
FHLB Appendix A 

• FHLB of Des Moines Overview  

• States Served:  

• Alaska, Hawaii, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota, Missouri, Montana, 
North Dakota,  Oregon, South Dakota, Utah, Washington and 
Wyoming  

• FHLB of Indianapolis Overview  

•  States Served:  

• Indiana and Michigan  
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FDIC Affordable Mortgage Lending Guide  
FHLB Appendix A 

• FHLB of New York Overview  

• States Served:  

• New Jersey, New York, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands  

• FHLB of Pittsburgh Overview  

•  States Served:  

• Delaware, Pennsylvania, and West Virginia  
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FDIC Affordable Mortgage Lending Guide  
FHLB Appendix A 

• FHLB of San Francisco Overview  

•  States Served: 

• Arizona, California, and Nevada  

• FHLB of Topeka Overview  

• States Served:  

• Colorado, Kansas, Nebraska, and Oklahoma  
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HUD and California Lenders settlement 

• U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
today announced an agreement with a group of California 
mortgage lenders to resolve allegations they discriminated 
against a mortgage applicant based on his national origin.  
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HUD and California Lenders settlement 

•  The case came to HUD’s attention when the applicant filed a 
fair housing complaint alleging that he  was unfairly denied an 
opportunity to prequalify for a mortgage loan, precluding him 
from purchasing a  home because he is Hispanic.  American 
Financial Network will pay the man $5,000; Benchmark 
Communities will provide annual fair housing training for its 
employees who interact with prospective homebuyers; and 
American Financial Network will provide annual fair housing 
training to current and new employees as they are hired. 
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CFPB Sues Ocwen 

• The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB) today sued 
one of the country’s largest nonbank mortgage loan servicers, 
Ocwen Financial Corporation, and its subsidiaries 

• The Bureau alleges that Ocwen’s years of widespread errors, 
shortcuts, and runarounds cost some borrowers money and 
others their homes. Ocwen allegedly botched basic functions 
like sending accurate monthly statements, properly crediting 
payments, and handling taxes and insurance 
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CFPB Sues Ocwen 

• Allegedly, Ocwen also illegally foreclosed on struggling 
borrowers, ignored customer complaints, and sold off the 
servicing rights to loans without fully disclosing the mistakes it 
made in borrowers’ records.  The Florida Attorney General took 
a similar action against Ocwen today in a separate lawsuit. 
Many state financial regulators are also independently issuing 
cease-and-desist and license revocation orders against Ocwen 
for escrow management and licensing issues. 
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CFPB Sues Ocwen 

• Ocwen, headquartered in West Palm Beach, Fla., is one of the 
nation’s largest nonbank mortgage servicers. As of Dec. 31, 
2016, Ocwen serviced almost  1.4 million loans with an 
aggregate unpaid principal balance of $209 billion.  

 

 

 



54 

CFPB Sues Ocwen 

• Serviced loans using error-riddled information: Ocwen uses a 
proprietary system called REALServicing to process and apply 
borrower  payments, communicate payment information to 
borrowers, and maintain loan balance information. Ocwen 
allegedly loaded inaccurate and incomplete information into its 
REALServicing system. And even when data was accurate, 
REALServicing generated errors because of system failures and  
deficient programming.  
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CFPB Sues Ocwen 

• To manage this risk, Ocwen tried manual workarounds, but they 
often failed to correct inaccuracies and produced still more 
errors. Ocwen then used this faulty information to service 
borrowers’ loans. In 2014, Ocwen’s head of servicing described 
its system as “ridiculous” and a “train wreck.” 
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CFPB Sues Ocwen 

• Botched escrow accounts: Ocwen manages escrow accounts for 
over 75 percent of the loans it services. Ocwen has allegedly 
botched basic tasks in managing these borrower accounts. 
Because of system breakdowns and an over-reliance on 
manually entering information, Ocwen has allegedly failed to 
conduct escrow analyses and sent some borrowers’ escrow 
statements late or not at all.  
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CFPB Sues Ocwen 

• Ocwen also allegedly failed to properly account for and apply 
payments by borrowers to address escrow shortages, such as 
changes in the account when property taxes go up. One result 
of this failure has been that some borrowers have paid 
inaccurate amounts. 
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CFPB Sues Ocwen 

• Mishandled hazard insurance: If a servicer administers an 
escrow account for a borrower, a servicer must make timely 
insurance and/or tax payments on behalf of the borrower. 
Ocwen, however, has allegedly failed to make timely insurance 
payments to pay for borrowers’ home insurance premiums. 
Ocwen’s failures led to the lapse of homeowners’ insurance 
coverage for more than 10,000 borrowers. Some borrowers 
were pushed into force-placed insurance. 
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CFPB Sues Ocwen 

• Bungled borrowers’ private mortgage insurance: Ocwen 
allegedly failed to cancel borrowers’ private mortgage 
insurance, or PMI, in a timely way, causing consumers to 
overpay. 

• Ocwen ultimately overcharged borrowers about $1.2 million for 
PMI premiums, and refunded this money only after the fact. 

• Failed to adequately investigate and respond to borrower 
complaints. 

• Since April 2015, Ocwen has received more than 580,000 
notices of error and complaints from more than 300,000 
different borrowers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



60 

HUD Credit Union Maternity Discrimination 

• HUD ANNOUNCES AGREEMENT WITH CALIFORNIA CREDIT 
UNION TO SETTLE MATERNITY DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT 

• Agreement between Wescom Central Credit Union, based in 
Pasadena, California, and a married couple, resolving 
allegations the company denied the couple’s mortgage loan 
application because the wife was on maternity leave.  
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HUD Credit Union Maternity Discrimination 

• Refusing to provide a mortgage loan or mortgage insurance 
because a woman is pregnant or on family leave violates the 
Fair Housing Act’s prohibition against sex and familial status 
discrimination, which includes discrimination against individuals 
who have or are expecting a child. Since 2010 HUD received 
nearly 150 complaints alleging maternity leave discrimination 
and has obtained more than $8 million in compensation for 
victims. 
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HUD Credit Union Maternity Discrimination 

• The couple alleged that Wescom Credit Union unfairly denied 
their mortgage loan and that the lender requested the woman 
return to work and provide a current pay stub before they would 
a approve the loan application. 

• Under the terms of the agreement Wescom will : 
• Refinance the couple's existing mortgage at a lower rate; 
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HUD Credit Union Maternity Discrimination 

• Create a $50,000 compensation fund for applicants who were 
similarly denied loans or withdrew mortgage applications form 
Wescom during calendar year 2015; 

• Ensure its lending policies regarding parental leave comply with the 
Fair Housing Act; 

• Provide fair lending training to its employees; and 
• Send a notice to its employees regarding its parental leave lending 

policies. 
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HUD Credit Union Maternity Discrimination 

• Within sixty (60) days of the execution of this Agreement, the 
Administrator shallsend a NOTICE TO APPLICANTS WHO 
APPLIED FOR A LOAN WHILE ON PREGNANCY OR PARENTAL 
LEAVE 
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HUD Credit Union Maternity Discrimination 

• (“Notice”), which includes a claim from as shown in Appendix A, 
to all loan applicants (a) who were turned down by 
Respondents, or withdrew their application for a mortgage loan, 
between January 1, 2015, and December 31, 2015; (b) who 
were between the ages of 18 and 50 when their applications 
were submitted, (c) whose applications were not denied due to 
the appraised value of the property to secure the mortgage, (d) 
whose applications were not denied Que to the applicants’ credit 
score, and (e) whose applications evidence a form of leave or 
disability income not related to social security disability or other 
disability not related to pregnancy or parental leave.  
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HUD Credit Union Maternity Discrimination 

• The Notice shall define a “Qualifying Claimant” and explain the 
process for such Claimants to apply for a remedy in the sum of 
up to $5,000. Within forty (40) days of the effective date of this 
Agreement, Wescom agrees to provide the last known name 
and· address of each person due to receive a Notice. The Notice 
shall be mailed to the last known address of each applicant, and 
if any Notice is returned with a forwarding address, the 
Administrator shall promptly re-send the Notice to the 
forwarding address. 
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NMLS 2.0 Journey Map 11 Federal  
Registration Institution  

• #11 - Federal Registration (Institution)  

• Kim, an Institution Organization User (Federal), wishes to 
submit a filing for federal registration for her institution, a 
process completed just once when an institution initially wishes 
to become registered. Kim has previously been assigned 
permission to  set up the institution’s record.  
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NMLS 2.0 Journey Map 11 Federal  
Registration Institution  

• After setting up the record, Kim selected the option to file for 
federal registration. Kim initiates the filing, which is 
automatically and completely populated from the institution's 
record. Kim reviews the filing to ensure accuracy, pays the 
federal registration fee, and submits to the federal registry. 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• Technical Corrections and Clarifying Amendments to the Home 
Mortgage Disclosure  

• Proposed rule with request for public comment 

• Comments must be received on or before May 25, 2017 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• The proposal would establish transition rules for two data 
points, loan purpose and the unique identifier for the loan 
originator.  The transition rules would permit financial 
institutions to report not applicable for these data points when 
reporting certain loans that they purchased that were originated 
before certain regulatory requirements took effect. 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• The proposal also would make additional amendments to clarify 
certain key terms, such as temporary financing and automated 
underwriting system, and create a new reporting exception for 
certain transactions associated with New York State 
consolidation, extension, and modification agreements.  
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• In addition, the proposal would facilitate reporting the census 
tract of the property securing, or, in the case of an application, 
proposed to secure, the covered loan required by Regulation C.  
The Bureau plans to make available on its web site a geocoding 
tool (the Bureau’s geocoding tool) that financial institutions may 
use to identify the census tract in which a property is located.   
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• The proposal would establish that a financial institution would 
not violate Regulation C by reporting an incorrect census tract 
for a particular property if the financial institution obtained the 
incorrect census tract number from the Bureau’s geocoding tool, 
provided that the financial institution entered an accurate 
property address into the tool and the tool returned a census 
tract for the address entered.  The proposal also would make 
certain technical corrections. 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• For the reasons discussed below, the Bureau proposes that the 
amendments included in this proposal take effect when the 
related amendments to Regulation C adopted by the 2015 
HMDA Final Rule take effect. 

• Accordingly, the Bureau proposes, as provided in the proposed 
amendatory instructions included below, that most of the 
proposed amendments take effect on January 1, 2018. 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

•  2(i) Home improvement loan 

•  Comment 2(i)-4 explains that a closed-end mortgage loan or 
open-end line of credit is a reportable home improvement loan 
under § 1003.2(i) if the proceeds are used to improve the entire 
property or primarily the residential portion of the property.  
However, comment 3(c)(10)- 3.ii provides an example 
indicating that a closed-end mortgage loan or open-end line of 
credit to improve an office in a dwelling would be a reportable 
home improvement loan under § 1003.2(i), even though its 
primary purpose is to improve the commercial portion of the 
property. 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• To resolve this apparent tension, the Bureau proposes to amend 
comment 2(i)-4 to clarify that the comment applies only to 
multifamily dwellings. The proposed amendment would clarify 
that the Bureau intends comment 2(i)-4 to apply to multifamily 
dwellings of the type referenced in the comment (for example, a 
building containing five or more apartment units and retail 
space), and not to non-multifamily dwellings that have both 
residential and commercial purposes (for example, a single-
family dwelling with a doctor’s office).  
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• The Bureau believes that loans or lines of credit to improve 
primarily the commercial portion of a multifamily dwelling 
should not be reportable home improvement loans because 
such loans or lines of credit involve relatively small housing 
components and large commercial components of the dwelling 
in comparison to loans or lines of credit to improve primarily the 
commercial portion of a dwelling other than a multifamily family 
dwelling. 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• Accordingly, the proposed amendments to comments 2(i)-4 and 
3(c)(10)-3.ii together would clarify that a loan to improve 
commercial space in a multifamily dwelling would not be a home 
improvement loan, but a loan to improve commercial space in a 
dwelling other than a multifamily dwelling would be a home 
improvement loan.  
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

•  3(c) Excluded Transactions 

•  3(c)(3) 

•  Currently, Regulation C provides an exclusion for temporary 
financing in § 1003.4(d)(3). 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• The Bureau is also concerned that comment 3(c)(3)-1 may be 
read as expanding Regulation C reporting requirements to 
certain transactions that the Bureau believes should be 
considered temporary financing and excluded from reporting 
because their unique characteristics provide limited data to 
support HMDA’s purposes.  Comment 3(c)(3)-1 does not 
specifically address a construction-only loan or line of credit to a 
person exclusively to construct a dwelling for sale. 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• Construction-only loans or lines of credit to construct a dwelling 
for sale are not currently reported under Regulation C, and the 
Bureau did not intend in the Final Rule to expand Regulation C’s 
coverage to include them.  

• The Bureau proposes to add new comment 3(c)(3)-2 to clarify 
that a construction-only loan or line of credit is considered 
temporary financing and excluded under § 1003.3(c)(3) if the 
loan or line of credit is extended to a person exclusively to 
construct a dwelling for sale. 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

•  3(c)(10) 

•  Proposed comment 3(c)(10)-3.ii would illustrate that a closed-
end mortgage loan or an open-end line of credit to improve a 
doctor’s office or a daycare center that is located in a dwelling 
other than a multifamily dwelling is not excluded from reporting 
under § 1003.3(c)(10). 
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

•  A closed-end mortgage loan or open-end line of credit to 
improve a dwelling other than a multifamily dwelling, even if 
primarily for a business or commercial purpose, would be a 
home improvement loan under § 1003.2(i) and would not be 
excluded under § 1003.3(c)(10). The Bureau believes the 
proposed amendment to comment 3(c)(10)-3.ii would clarify 
that non- multifamily dwellings are not “mixed-use property” as 
described in comment 2(i)-4, even if they contain an office or 
other commercial space.  
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CFPB NPRM HMDA 

• To improve clarity, the Bureau also proposes minor changes to 
comment 3(c)(10)-3 to add the word “although” and remove 
the word “but.” The Bureau solicits comment on the proposed 
clarifications. 
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MBA Files Amicus Curiae Brief in  
Support of KleinBank 

• Minnesota Bankers Association  

• MBA Files Amicus Curiae Brief in Support of KleinBank in its 
Lawsuit Brought By the DOJ 

• As included in our April 2017 materials 
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MBA Files Amicus Curiae Brief in  
Support of KleinBank 

• In nearly all instances when the DOJ brings this type of lawsuit, 
the bank involved agrees to settle the case by entering into a 
consent decree and paying a large fine. KleinBank chose to 
litigate the case because bank management and the bank’s 
attorneys believe that the DOJ is seriously over-reaching in this 
case, and they are confident that the bank has both the law and 
the facts on its side. 
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MBA Files Amicus Curiae Brief in  
Support of KleinBank 

•  KleinBank asked the MBA to write and file an amicus curiae 
(Friend of the Court) brief in support of its position.  

• The MBA Board determined that there were several issues in the 
KleinBank case that impacted the industry as a whole and 
therefore voted unanimously to approve the amicus request. 
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MBA Files Amicus Curiae Brief in  
Support of KleinBank 

• Summary of key points: 

I. Operating in a Heavily Regulated Industry, Bankers Need 
Certainty and Consistency 

• Bankers need certainty with respect to regulatory requirements. 
There are thousands of pages of regulations, and bankers need 
certainty on the details, like key definitions. In this instance 
they need certainty as to the definition of redlining. 
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MBA Files Amicus Curiae Brief in  
Support of KleinBank 

II. Interagency Fair Lending Examination Procedures and 
Redlining 

•  The FL Procedures define Redlining as a form of illegal 
disparate treatment discrimination, which includes a causation 
standard. A claimant must prove that a party acted “because of” 
race or national origin. 
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MBA Files Amicus Curiae Brief in  
Support of KleinBank 

III. DOJ’s Redlining Complaint Against KleinBank 

• The complaint does not use the definition of redlining from the 
FL Procedures. The DOJ’s new, expansive definition does not 
include a causation standard. 
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MBA Files Amicus Curiae Brief in  
Support of KleinBank 

 IV. Conclusions: 

•  WBA urges the Court to reject the DOJ’s expansive definition of 
redlining, otherwise the mere existence of a majority-minority 
area located outside a bank’s trade area would automatically 
equate to illegal discrimination. Even if a bank had perfectly 
legitimate business reasons for how it created its market area, it 
could still be found guilty of redlining, which is not the standard 
in the law.  
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MBA Files Amicus Curiae Brief in  
Support of KleinBank 

• To make the MBA’s amicus brief more persuasive, KleinBank 
encouraged the MBA to invite other bankers associations to join 
our brief. Thirty-nine additional state bankers associations 
understood the importance of this case, so they joined the brief. 
The American Bankers Association signed on to the brief, too. 
Then, the Independent Community Bankers of Minnesota and 
the Independent Community Bankers of America asked if they 
could join the cause. 
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Loans to do list 

• Share with management/board the potential cost of getting 
HMDA wrong 

• For CRA purposes, look at the affordable mortgage lending 
guide for possible programs that would work for your institution 

• Look at your controls for mortgage servicing accuracy in light of 
the Ocwen case 

• Train, re-train, or remind your underwriters and lenders about 
the risks of maternity discrimination 
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Loans to do list 

• Demonstrate to lenders the new functionality and process for 
the NMLS website 

• Monitor the proposed HMDA clarifications and changes.  Build 
into your HMDA training materials as applicable 
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Deposits 
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FDIC on Linked Savings Accounts 

• Linked Savings Accounts 

• Many institutions offer overdraft payment programs that enable 
consumers to avoid overdrawing their accounts and incurring 
non-sufficient funds (NSF) or overdraft fees. Some programs 
involve linking a checking account to a savings account, from 
which funds are transferred automatically to cover transactions 
that would overdraw the account.  For these transfers, 
institutions generally charge a fee that is often lower than an 
NSF or overdraft fee. 
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FDIC on Linked Savings Accounts 

• Examiners have identified situations where transfers still occur 
when the linked account does not have sufficient funds available 
to cover an overdraft, resulting in the assessment of both a 
transfer fee and the institution’s standard NSF or overdraft fee.  
The consumer has then paid a fee for a transfer that did not 
prevent the NSF or overdraft fee. 
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FDIC on Linked Savings Accounts 

• Necessary to ensure that its core system settings corresponded 
to the terms of disclosures, agreements, and advertisements 

• Under Regulation DD, disclosures and advertisements must be 
clear, accurate and reflect the consumer’s legal obligation.  
Examiners have cited violations of Regulation DD 
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FDIC on Linked Savings Accounts 

• In some situations, these practices and/or omissions have also 
violated Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, which 
prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices (UDAP) 
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FRB Regulation CC final rule 

• There are no changes to the availabilityschedule in this final rule 

•  Regulation CC;  

• Final Rule 

• The Board is amending subparts A, C, and D of Regulation CC, 
Availability of Funds and Collection of Checks (12 CFR part 229),  
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FRB Regulation CC final rule 

• In the final rule, the Board has modified the current check 
collection and return requirements to reflect the virtually all- 
electronic check collection and return environment and to 
encourage all depositary banks to receive, and paying banks to 
send, returned checks electronically.  The Board has retained 
without change, the current same-day settlement rule for paper 
checks. 
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FRB Regulation CC final rule 

• The Board is also applying Regulation CC’s existing check 
warranties under subpart C to checks that are collected 
electronically, and in addition, has adopted new warranties and 
indemnities related to checks collected and returned 
electronically and to electronically-created items. 

• EFFECTIVE DATE:  July 1, 2018 
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FRB Regulation CC final rule 

• The Board implemented the EFA Act in subparts A, B, and C of 
Regulation CC. Subpart A of Regulation CC contains general 
information, such as definitions of terms.  Subpart B of 
Regulation CC specifies availability schedules within which banks 
must make funds available for withdrawal and includes rules 
regarding exceptions to the schedules, disclosure of funds 
availability policies, and payment of interest.4  Subpart C of 
Regulation CC implements the EFA Act’s provisions regarding 
forward collection and return of checks. 
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FRB Regulation CC final rule 

• f. Section 229.34(f) – Remote deposit capture indemnity  

• The Board proposed a new indemnity to address the allocation 
of liability when a depositary bank accepts deposit of a check 
through “remote deposit capture,” that is, when the depositor 
sends the bank electronic information about a check, such as a 
photographic image, which the bank uses to create an electronic 
check or substitute check for collection.  
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FRB Regulation CC final rule 

• The proposed indemnity would be provided by a bank that 
accepted a check via remote deposit capture to a bank that 
accepted the original check for deposit, in the event the bank 
that accepted the original check incurred a loss because the 
check had already been paid. 
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FRB Regulation CC final rule 

• Under the proposal, the indemnity would be provided by a 
depositary bank that 1) is a “truncating bank” under Regulation 
CC because it accepts deposit of an electronic image or other 
electronic information related to an original check, 2) does not 
receive the original check, 3) receives settlement or other 
consideration for an electronic check or substitute check related 
to the original check, and 4) does not receive the check 
returned unpaid.  The proposed indemnity ran to a depositary 
bank that accepts the original check for deposit for that 
depositary bank’s losses due to the check having already been 
paid. 
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FRB Regulation CC final rule 

•  Based on comments received, however, the Board has added 
an exception to the indemnity, and associated commentary, 
which would prevent a bank from making an indemnity claim if 
it accepted the original check containing a restrictive 
indorsement inconsistent with the means of deposit, such as 
“for mobile deposit only.”  The Board believes that providing this 
exception may reduce accidental double deposits and may 
provide incentives for banks that receive remote deposit capture 
deposits to take steps to minimize intentionally fraudulent 
deposits. 
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FRB Regulation CC final rule 

• The Board believes that the details of how to ascertain the 
identity of the indemnifying bank are best left to the banks 
involved.  The Board will continue to monitor the use of this 
indemnity and may consider further action should conditions 
warrant.  In the final rule and corresponding commentary, the 
Board is changing this section’s title from the proposed 
“Truncating Bank Indemnity” to “Remote Deposit Capture 
Indemnity” and has designated this section as § 229.34(f). 
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CFPB delays prepaid card rules 

• CFPB finalizes effective date extension for prepaid accounts rule 

• APR 20, 2017 

• The rule will now take effect on April 1, 2018 

• Also decided to revisit at least two substantive issues in the 
prepaid accounts rule through a separate notice and comment 
rulemaking process 
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CFPB delays prepaid card rules 

• Those two issues relate to: 
• The linking of credit cards to digital wallets that are capable of 

storing funds 
• Error resolution and limitations on liability for prepaid accounts that 

cannot be registered, have not yet been registered, or for which 
consumers have attempted but have not successfully completed 
the registration process 
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Prepaid small entity guide and  
proposed amendments 

• Prepaid rule 

• Small entity compliance guide 

• Updated to reflect the delay of the general effective date of the 
rule to April 1, 2018 

• Updated to incorporate additional guidance on: 
• Treatment of reload packs that are marketed or labeled as 

“prepaid” (Section 2.4), 
• The requirement for consistent use of fee names and other terms 

within a particular prepaid account program (Section 4.1.7), 
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Prepaid small entity guide and  
proposed amendments 

• When a financial institution is required to provide foreign language 
short form and long form disclosures (Section 4.1.8), 

• Meaningfully naming URLs in short form disclosures (Section 
4.2.7), 

• Providing electronic account transaction histories via mobile 
applications (Section 8.2), 
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Prepaid small entity guide and  
proposed amendments 

• Submitting certain prepaid account agreements to the Bureau 
(Section 14.3.4). 

• Updated to clarify that reversing a provisional credit does not 
otherwise trigger Regulation Z coverage under the Prepaid Rule 
(Section 15.5.1) and to make other administrative changes 
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Prepaid small entity guide and  
proposed amendments 

•  On October 5, 2016, the Bureau released a final rule to create 
comprehensive consumer protections for prepaid accounts 
under Regulation E, which implements the Electronic Fund 
Transfer Act (EFTA),1 and Regulation Z, which implements the 
Truth in Lending Act (TILA) (2016 Final Rule) 

• To facilitate compliance, after notice and comment, the Bureau 
extended the general effective date of the 2016 Final Rule to 
April 1, 2018  
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Prepaid small entity guide and  
proposed amendments 

• The Bureau is proposing herein to amend several provisions of 
the Prepaid Accounts Rule 

• In particular, the Bureau is proposing to: 
• Revise the error resolution and limited liability provisions of the 

Prepaid Accounts Rule in Regulation E to provide that financial 
institutions would not be required to resolve errors or limit 
consumers’ liability on unverified prepaid accounts 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



116 

Prepaid small entity guide and  
proposed amendments 

• Create a limited exception to the credit-related provisions of the 
Prepaid Accounts Rule in Regulation Z for certain business 
arrangements between prepaid account issuers and credit card 
issuers that offer traditional credit card products 

• Make clarifications or minor adjustments to provisions of the 
Prepaid Accounts Rule related to an exclusion from the definition of 
prepaid account, unsolicited issuance of access devices, several 
aspects of the rule’s pre-aquisition disclosure requirements, and 
submission of prepaid account agreements to the Bureau 
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Prepaid small entity guide and  
proposed amendments 

•  Finally, the Bureau is soliciting comment on whether a further 
delay of the Prepaid Accounts Rule’s effective date would be 
necessary and appropriate in light of the amendments proposed 
herein, and whether a specific provision addressing early 
compliance would be necessary and appropriate for compliance 
with the Prepaid Accounts Rule prior to its effective date. 
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Deposits to do list 

• Test your automated transfer saving or other linked account 
fees and processes to ensure you are not double charging 

• Update your remote deposit capture processes to require a 
restrictive endorsement of “for mobile deposit only” to reduce 
the likelihood of the item being deposited a second time as a 
paper deposit 

• Monitor the delay of the prepaid card rules and the changes that 
may occur prior to April 2018 



119 119 

UDAAP 



120 

CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• Consumer Financial Protection Bureau 

•  Plaintiff 

•  Intercept Corporation, d/b/a InterceptEFT, Bryan Smith, 
individually, and as owner and president of Intercept 
Corporation, and Craig Dresser, individually and as owner and 
CEO of Intercept Corporation 

• Defendants 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS THE 
COMPLAINT 

• Plaintiff, Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“the CFPB”), 
filed a complaint against Defendants, Intercept Corporation, 
Bryan Smith, and Craig Dresser  (collectively “the Intercept 
defendants”), containing two causes of action which alleged 
violations of the Consumer Financial Protection Act (“the CFPA”). 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• Intercept is a third party payment processor in the business of 
processing the electronic transfer of  funds through the 
Automated Clearing House (“ACH”) network on behalf of its 
clients. 

•  As a third party payment processor, Intercept provides its 
clients with access to banks in order to facilitate the debiting 
and crediting of funds electronically from consumer bank 
accounts.  
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• Intercept’s clients include consumer lenders, auto title lenders, 
sales finance companies, and debt collectors. Businesses and 
individuals utilize third  party processors like Intercept when 
they are unable to establish their own relationships with 
banking institutions or because it is more administratively 
convenient. 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• Intercept’s clients are known as “Originators.” When an 
Originator sends a request  to Intercept,  Intercept  conveys  
the  request to its own  bank,  which is known as the 
“Originating Depository Financial Institution” or “ODFI”. The 
ODFI then forwards the debit or credit request to an ACH 
operator, who transmits the request to the   recipient’s bank, 
known as the “Receiving Depository Financial Institution” or 
“RDFI.”  
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• The RDFI then credits or debits the recipient’s account and 
sends the money back to Intercept through the ODFI. Intercept 
remits the debit amount back to its client and charges the client 
fees for its services. 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

According to the complaint: 

• In a typical transaction that Intercept undertakes on behalf of a 
lender or debt collector, the client instructs Intercept to 
withdraw loan repayments from the borrower’s bank account, 
directing Intercept on which bank to contact, the payment 
schedule to use, and the amount to withdraw. Intercept 
instructs its bank to contact the borrower’s bank to withdraw 
the money. The borrower’s bank debits the account and remits 
it to Intercept’s bank, and Intercept then transfers the money to 
its client. 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• Industry rules and guidelines emphasize the responsibility of all 
ACH participants, including third party payment processors like 
Intercept, to monitor merchant return rates and other 
suspicious activity to detect and prevent fraud in the ACH 
network. 

• Defendants, however, have processed payments for many 
clients even in the face of  numerous  indicators  that  those 
clients were engaged in fraudulent or illegal transactions 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

•  Intercept is alleged to have ignored warnings from ODFIs of 
possible illegal activity by its clients, 

• For example, an ODFI complained to the Defendants that one of 
its clients, an auto title lender, which was debiting varying 
amounts from consumers’ accounts multiple times, did not have 
the contractual right or proper consumer  authorization  to do 
so, stating  that  it  was “not  ok  [for  the] merchant to us[e] 
the ACH to ‘sneak’ attack a consumer’s account, [as] it will only 
draw regulatory attention. 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

•  If an ODFI raised concerns or terminated its relationship with 
Intercept, Intercept would find another ODFI to process 
transactions for the same clients who were the subject of the 
concerns. 

• Intercept’s clients “unauthorized returns” rates have only stayed 
below the NACHA guideline amount because of Intercept’s use 
of a fee-based “Xcelerated Returns” program, which prevents 
transactions form being processed through the ACH network. 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• Defendants have ignored law enforcement activity relating to its 
clients’ activity, including a Federal Trade Commission lawsuit 
against AMG Services, Inc., which Defendants knew about in the 
spring of 2012. 

• At a minimum a complaint must give defendants fair notice of 
the grounds for the claim and at least a general indication of 
what the litigation involves. 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• The complaint contains two counts, both based in the CFPA’s 
prohibition of covered persons or service providers engaging “in 
any unfair, deceptive, or abusive act or practice.”  First, it 
alleges that Intercept Corporation, Bryan Smith, and Craig 
Dresser, as  “covered persons” under the Consumer Financial 
Protection Act (“the CFPA”) engaged in unfair acts and practices 
in violation of the Act. 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• Secondly, it alleges that Bryan Smith and Craig Dresser, as 
“related persons” under the CFPA, provided substantial 
assistance to Intercept’s violations of the CFPA. 

• The analysis hinges on whether the complaint adequately states 
causes for “unfair, deceptive, or abusive acts or practices.”  
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• Nothing in the complaint allows the defendants or the court to 
ascertain whether any potential injury was or was not 
counterbalanced by benefits to the consumers at issue. 

• The complaint lacks factual allegations that would support a 
finding that Intercept interfered with consumers’ ability to 
understand the terms of their dealings with Intercept’s clients  
or  that  would  support  a  finding  that  Intercept  took  
unlawful  advantage of consumers. 
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• The complaint simply does not sufficiently identify particular 
clients whose actions provided “red flags” to Intercept or how 
Intercept’s failure to act upon those “red flags” caused harm or 
was likely to cause harm to any identified consumer or group of 
consumers.  Although the CFPB strongly urges this court to find 
that the complaint’s factual detail is sufficient to allow 
defendants to recognize the specific clients, the complaint does 
not provide the court with sufficient information or factual detail 
to analyze whether it is sufficient to state a claim for relief.  
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CFPB intercept motion dismiss 

• The defendants’ motion to  dismiss, under Rule 12(b)(6) of the 
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, for failure to state a claim is 
granted. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION  

• ORDER FOR RESTITUTION AND ORDER TO PAY CIVIL MONEY 
PENALTY 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• The FDIC considered the matter and determined that the Bank 
engaged in unfair and deceptive acts or practices in or affecting 
commerce, in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade 
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a)(1), and its institution-
affiliated parties, Freedom Stores, Inc. (“FSI”) and Military 
Credit Services, LLC (“MCS”), engaged in deceptive marketing 
of loans on the Bank’s behalf, as well as deceptive marketing of 
add-on products. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• Dated April 25, 2017 

• Through the CONSENT AGREEMENT, the Bank has consented, 
solely for the purpose of this proceeding and without admitting 
or denying any facts, findings, conclusions of law, and/or 
violations of law, rule, or regulation 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• Within ten (10) days from the effective date of this ORDER, the 
Bank shall deposit into a trust or otherwise segregated deposit 
account an amount not less than $3,000,000 for the purpose of 
providing restitution (“Restitution Account”) as required by the 
Order for Restitution and Order to Pay Civil Money Penalty 
between the FDIC and the Bank. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• The Bank has cooperated with FSI and MCS in connection with 
the submission to the Regional Director of the FDIC’s Chicago 
Regional Office (“Regional Director”) a comprehensive 
Restitution Plan (“Restitution Plan”) for all past and present 
borrowers who, from August 14, 2013 to September 11, 2015 
(or such earlier date as provided in the Restitution Plan) 
(“Eligible Consumers”), are entitled to receive restitution. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• Provide restitution, in accordance with this ORDER, to Eligible 
Consumers who: (i) applied for and received loans from the 
Bank through the FSI online channel that were promoted with 
six months no interest from August 14, 2013 to June 30, 2015; 
and (ii) paid off these loans within six months; 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• Provide restitution, in accordance with this ORDER, to Eligible 
Consumers who received loans from the Bank through the MCS 
channel and purchased United Motor Club and Freedom Value 
Club memberships between August 14, 2013 through March 25, 
2015 without being fully informed about the terms and 
conditions of each of these memberships; 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• Provide restitution, in accordance with this ORDER, to Eligible 
Consumers who received loans from the Bank through the FSI 
and MCS channels and purchased overlapping and multiple 
memberships in the United Motor Club 

•  Provide restitution, in accordance with this ORDER, to Eligible 
Consumers who received loans from the Bank through the FSI 
and MCS channels and purchased multiple memberships in the 
Freedom Value Club; 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• Provide restitution, in accordance with this ORDER, to Eligible 
Consumers who received loans from the Bank through the FSI 
and MCS channels and purchased the Optional Debt 
Cancellation Contract Amendment and were not given the 
opportunity to exercise the monthly premium payment option 
provided for by the contract. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• Bank shall submit to the Regional Director, for review and non-
objection, a proposed announcement to be prominently posted 
on the Bank’s website that describes this ORDER and the 
restitution payments to be made by the Bank to Eligible 
Consumers. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order 

• ORDER TO PAY CIVIL MONEY PENALTY 

• A penalty of $151,000 is assessed against the Bank 

•   
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-Freedom Stores Inc 

• FREEDOM STORES, INC.,ORDER FOR RESTITUTION as an 
institution-affiliated AND ORDER TO PAY CIVIL party  
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-Freedom Stores Inc 

• The FDIC determined that Freedom engaged in unfair and 
deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce, in violation 
of section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“Section 5”), 
15 U.S.C. § 45(a)(1), engaged in deceptive  marketing of loans 
on the Bank’s behalf, as well as deceptive marketing of add-on 
products. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-Freedom Stores Inc 

• Dated April 13, 2017 

• Freedom has consented, solely for the purposes of this 
proceeding and without  admitting or denying any facts, 
findings, conclusions of law, and/or charges of violations of law 
or regulation. 

• Freedom understands that the Bank shall deposit into a trust or 
otherwise segregated deposit account an amount not less than 
$3,000,000 for the purpose of providing restitution. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-Freedom Stores Inc 

• ORDER TO PAY CIVIL MONEY PENALTY 

• A penalty of $54,000 is assessed against Freedom 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-MCS 

• MILITARY CREDIT SERVICES, LLC as an institution-affiliated  

• The FDIC determined that MCS engaged in unfair and deceptive 
acts or practices in or affecting commerce, in violation of section 
5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“Section 5”), 15 U.S.C. 
§ 45(a)(1), engaged in deceptive marketing of loans on the 
Bank’s behalf, as well as deceptive marketing of add-on 
products 

• MCS, by and through its duly elected  
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-MCS 

• MCS has consented, solely for the purposes of this proceeding 
and without admitting or denying any facts, findings, 
conclusions of law, and/or charges of violations of law or 
regulation 

• MCS understands that the Bank shall deposit into a trust or 
otherwise segregated deposit account at the Bank an amount 
not less than $3,000,000 for the purpose of providing restitution 
(“Restitution Account”) as required by the Order For Restitution 
and Order to Pay Civil Money Penalty between the FDIC and the 
Bank. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-MCS 

• ORDER TO PAY CIVIL MONEY PENALTY 

• A penalty of $37,000 is assessed against MCS 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-CFPB 

• December 18, 2014 

• CFPB and States Take Action Against Freedom Stores for Illegal 
Debt Collection Practices Against Servicemembers 

• CFPB alleges that Freedom Stores, Inc., Freedom Acceptance 
Corporation, and Military Credit Services LLC used illegal tactics 
to collect debts, including filing illegal lawsuits, debiting 
consumers’ accounts without authorization, and contacting 
servicemembers’ commanding officers. The CFPB and the states 
filed a consent order in federal court to require the three 
companies and their owners and chief officers, John Melley and 
Leonard Melley, Jr. to provide over $2.5 million in consumer 
redress and to pay a $100,000 civil penalty. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-CFPB 

•  “This settlement resolves serious charges that Freedom 
Furniture engaged in abusive, harassing collection practices 
against Virginia veterans and servicemembers while also 
misusing Virginia courts to go after consumers who neither live 
nor do business in Virginia.”  
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-CFPB 

•  Freedom Stores (also known as Freedom Furniture and 
Electronics) is a Virginia- based furniture and electronics retailer 
that caters to U.S. military members with stores located near 
military bases nationwide. Freedom Stores offers credit to 
consumers purchasing its merchandise and transfers the 
contracts to an affiliated company, Freedom Acceptance 
Corporation. John Melley and Leonard Melley, Jr. also own 
Military Credit Services, which provides financing for purchases 
made at over 300 independent consumer-goods retailers, 
primarily catering to servicemembers. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-CFPB 

• Double-dipping into servicemembers’ funds: Most of Freedom 
Acceptance’s and Military Credit Services’ customers sent their 
payments via military allotment, but the companies also 
required consumers to authorize withdrawals from a bank 
account as a back-up payment method. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-CFPB 

• Because the companies relied on reports from a payment 
processor that were sometimes incorrect, many consumers had 
their payments taken from both their paychecks and their bank 
accounts in the same month, often without their knowledge and 
before the payment due date. This caused many 
servicemembers to pay unexpected overdraft fees and non-
sufficient funds charges. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-CFPB 

• Contacting commanding officers to pressure servicemembers 
into repayment: A clause buried in the fine print of the purchase 
contracts required servicemembers to allow Freedom 
Acceptance and Military Credit Services to contact their 
commanding officers about their debt. The companies would 
contact the officers in writing and by phone to disclose the 
debts, humiliating the servicemembers and putting their careers 
at risk. For members of the military, consumer-credit problems 
can result in disciplinary proceedings or lead to revocation of a 
security clearance. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-CFPB 

• Illegally debiting bank or credit card accounts of consumers’ 
family and friends: Collectors for these companies withdrew 
funds from checking accounts and credit cards of consumers’ 
parents, significant others or other individuals without prior 
authorization. The problem would start when a parent or other 
third party would authorize a one-time payment on a 
consumer’s behalf.   The companies would keep the payment 
information in their systems, and then debt collectors would 
later take funds from those accounts without authorization or 
notification. 
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Bank of Lake Mills Order-CFPB 

• The Bureau and the states’ complaint is not a finding or ruling 
that the defendants have actually violated the law. 
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Wells Fargo 

• Independent Directors of the Board of Wells Fargo & Company 
Sales Practices Investigation Report April 10, 2017 

• Principal Findings 
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Wells Fargo 

• The root cause of sales practice failures was the distortion of the 
Community Bank’s sales culture and performance management 
system, which, when combined with aggressive sales 
management, created pressure on employees to sell unwanted 
or unneeded products to customers and, in some cases, to open 
unauthorized accounts.  Wells Fargo’s decentralized corporate 
structure gave too much autonomy to the Community Bank’s 
senior leadership, who were unwilling to change the sales model 
or even recognize it as the root cause of the problem.  
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Wells Fargo 

• Community Bank leadership resisted and impeded outside 
scrutiny or oversight and, when forced to report, minimized the 
scale and nature of the problem. 

• The former Chief Executive Officer, relying on Wells Fargo’s 
decades of success with cross-sell and positive customer and 
employee survey results, was too slow to investigate or critically 
challenge sales practices in the Community Bank.  
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Wells Fargo 

• Corporate control functions were constrained by the 
decentralized organizational structure and a culture of 
substantial deference to the business units.  In addition, a 
transactional approach to problem-solving obscured their view 
of the broader context.  As a result, they missed opportunities 
to analyze, size and escalate sales practice issues. 
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Wells Fargo 

• Sales practices were not identified to the Board as a noteworthy 
risk until 2014.  By early 2015, management reported that 
corrective action was working.  Throughout 2015 and 2016, the 
Board was regularly engaged on the issue; however, 
management reports did not accurately convey the scope of the 
problem.  The Board only learned that approximately 5,300 
employees had been terminated for sales practices violations 
through the September 2016 settlements with the Los Angeles 
City Attorney, the OCC and the CFPB. 
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Wells Fargo 

• Reform and Accountability 

• The Board has taken numerous actions and supported 
management steps to address these issues. Wells Fargo has 
replaced and reorganized the leadership of the Community 
Bank. It has also eliminated sales goals and reformed incentive 
compensation.  Centralization of control functions is being 
accelerated.  The Board has separated the role of the Chairman 
and the CEO, strengthened the charters of Board Committees 
and established regular reporting to the Board by the new Office 
of Ethics, Oversight and Integrity.  
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Wells Fargo 

• As a result of the investigation, the Board has terminated for 
cause five senior executives of the Community Bank and has 
imposed forfeitures, clawbacks and compensation adjustments 
on senior leaders totaling more than $180 million. 
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Wells Fargo 

• OFFICE OF ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE AND THE OMBUDSMAN 

• LESSONS LEARNED REVIEW OF SUPERVISION OF SALES 
PRACTICES  AT WELLS FARGO 

•  4/19/2017 
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Wells Fargo 

• On September 6, 2016, the Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency (OCC) issued a consent order and related civil money 
penalty (CMP) action against Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (WF)  
finding that the bank engaged in reckless unsafe or unsound 
banking practices.  Wells Fargo’s (WF) improper sales practices, 
including the opening and manipulation of customer accounts 
without  the customer’s authorization, are completely  
unacceptable and have no place in  the banking system.   
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Wells Fargo 

• The actions of WF highlight that the OCC must continue our 
efforts to improve and refine the agency’s supervisory  program, 
to sharpen our early warning processes, and to enhance our 
supervisory capabilities. 

• Toward that end, the Comptroller directed the Enterprise 
Governance division to perform an independent  review of the 
WF supervisory record  to identify any supervision  gaps and  
lessons learned to improve the OCC’s supervisory processes 
going forward.  This report summarizes that review.  
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Wells Fargo 

• Large Bank Supervision (LBS) had an opportunity  to provide 
comments  regarding their assessment  of the effectiveness  of 
supervision over sales  practices. 

• Enterprise Governance Supervision (EGS): 
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Wells Fargo 

• The OCC did not take timely and effective supervisory actions 
after the bank and the OCC identified significant issues with 
complaint management and sales practices. 

• In Supervisory Letter (SL) 2009-46-Compliance and Enterprise 
Risk Management, the OCC issued an MRA requiring an 
enterprise-wide system for complaint management. This 2009 
MRA remained  uncorrected and was incorporated into the 2016 
consent order. 
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Wells Fargo 

• The issues with sales practices were identified in the bank’s 
audit committee reports as early as 2005 and in OCC core 
assessment conclusions since at least 2010. EGS observed 
supervision gaps or deficient OCC processes that could have 
improved the timeliness and effectiveness of supervision of 
sales practices. They include untimely and ineffective 
supervision of complaints and whistleblower cases, untimely and 
ineffective supervision of incentive programs related to sales 
practices, ineffective MRA communication and follow-up, 
ineffective supervision of  reputation risk, unclear supervisory 
records, and noncompliance with OCC guidance.  
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Wells Fargo 

• Wells Fargo supervision since 2010 provides meaningful lessons 
learned about the importance of comprehensive  LBS complaint  
and whistleblower  analysis  and  follow-up, effective  
supervision  of controls around high risk incentives, quality MRA 
communication and follow-up, clear supervisory records, 
supervision of reputation risk, and an enterprise-wide  
whistleblower processes. 
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UDAAP to do list 

• Understand that the CFPB does not always win – Intercept case 

• Third party vendors can be two-time “losers” – ensure that your 
process includes a search for prior actions 

• Wells Fargo – share both the independent board report and the 
OCC report – seems there were several potential break downs 
causing the problem 



177 177 

MISCELLANEOUS 



178 

Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• Supervisory Highlights 

• Issue 15, Spring 2017 

• Recent supervisory resolutions have resulted in total 
restitution payments of approximately $6.1 million to 
more than 16,000 consumers during the review period. 
Additionally, CFPB’s recent supervisory activities have 
either led to or supported five recent public enforcement 
actions, resulting in over $39 million in consumer 
remediation and an additional $19 million in civil money 
penalties. 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• Mortgage origination 

• Observations and approach to compliance with the Ability 
to Repay (ATR) rule requirements 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act (Dodd-Frank Act) amended the Truth in 
Lending Act (TILA) to provide that no creditor may make 
a residential mortgage loan unless the creditor makes a 
reasonable and good faith determination based on 
verified and documented information that, at the time the 
loan is consummated, the consumer has a reasonable 
ability to repay the loan according to its terms, as well as 
all applicable taxes, insurance (including mortgage 
guarantee insurance), and assessments. 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• The Bureau amended Regulation Z to require that a creditor 
shall not make a loan that is a covered transaction (i.e., in 
general, a closed-end, dwelling-secured consumer credit 
transaction) unless the creditor makes a reasonable and good 
faith determination at or before consummation that the 
consumer will have a reasonable ability to repay the loan 
according to its terms (ATR rule).   
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• For a QM loan, the rule provides a safe harbor for compliance 
with the ATR requirement for loans that are not higher-priced 
covered transactions and a presumption of such ATR compliance 
for higher-priced covered transactions. The Bureau’s ATR rule 
has been in effect since January 10, 2014. 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

•  Reasonable and good faith determination requirement and 
basis for determination 

• Creditors have flexibility in creating their own underwriting 
standards when making ATR determinations, as long as those 
standards incorporate the minimum requirements set forth in 
the rule. Therefore, Supervision evaluates whether a creditor’s 
ATR determination is reasonable and in good faith by reviewing 
relevant lending policies and procedures and a sample of loan 
files and assessing the facts and circumstances of each 
extension of credit in the sample. 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• Verification using third-party records and verification of income 
or assets 

• A creditor must verify the amounts of income or assets the 
creditor relies on to determine a  consumer’s ability to repay the 
loan using third-party records that provide reasonably reliable 
evidence of the consumer’s income or assets. The ATR rule does 
not require that creditors adhere to a prescribed method of 
verifying income or assets. Creditors may refer to the non- 
exhaustive list of records set forth in the ATR rule in verifying 
the consumer’s income or assets. 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• Supervision determines whether the creditor considered the 
required underwriting factors in determining the ability to repay. 
Then examiners determine whether the creditor properly 
verified the information it relied upon in making that 
determination. Records a creditor uses for verification, including 
to verify income or assets, must be specific to the individual 
consumer. 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• A creditor may base its determination of ability to repay on 
current or reasonably expected income from employment or 
other sources, assets other than the dwelling (and any attached 
real property) that secures the covered transaction, or both. 
The income and/or assets relied upon must be verified. 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• A creditor relying on assets and not income could, for example, 
assume income is zero and properly determine that no income 
is necessary to make a reasonable determination of the 
consumer’s ability to repay the loan in light of the consumer’s 
verified assets 

• Reliance on down payment size to support repayment ability for 
a consumer with no verified income or assets 

• As an initial matter, a down payment cannot be treated as an 
asset for purposes of considering the consumer’s income or 
assets under the ATR rule 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• Mortgage servicing 

• Dual tracking 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• Examiners found that one or more servicers did not properly 
classify loss mitigation applications as facially complete after 
receiving the documents and information requested in the loss 
mitigation acknowledgment notice and failed to afford these 
eligible consumers with foreclosure protections for facially 
complete applications as required by Regulation X.  
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• The servicer(s) made the first notice or filing even though the 
consumers had timely submitted facially complete applications 
and were entitled to Regulation X’s foreclosure protections. 
Supervision also determined that the servicer(s) violated 
Regulation X by failing to maintain policies and procedures 
reasonably designed to properly evaluate a borrower who 
submits a loss mitigation application for all loss mitigation 
options for which the borrower may be eligible. 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• Paying the wrong consumer’s insurance premiums with escrow 
funds 

• One or more servicers disbursed funds from some borrowers’ 
escrow accounts to pay insurance premiums owed by other 
borrowers 

• Vague periodic statements 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• In connection with periodic statements required under 
Regulation Z, examiners found one or more servicers used the 
phrases “Misc. Expenses” and “Charge for Service” when 
describing transaction activity that caused a credit or debit to 
the amount currently due as displayed on periodic statements. 
Supervision cited the servicer(s) for violating Regulation Z 
requirements that the transaction activity listed on periodic 
statements include a brief description of the transactions 
because the phrases “Misc. Expenses” and “Charge for Service” 
were not adequate or specific enough to comply with the rule’s 
requirement. 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• Student loan servicing 

• Failing to reverse adverse consequences of erroneous deferment 
terminations 

• Deceptive statements about interest capitalization during 
successive deferments 

• Fair lending 

• Update to proxy methodology 
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Supervisory Highlights Spring 2017 

• In December, the U.S. Census Bureau released a list of the most 
frequently occurring surnames based on the most recent 
census, which includes values for total counts and race and 
ethnicity shares associated with each surname. In total, the list 
provides information on the 162,253 surnames that appear at 
least 100 times in the most recent census, covering 
approximately 90% of the population.  As of April 2017, 
examination teams are relying on an updated proxy 
methodology that reflects the newly available surname data 
from the Census Bureau. 
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FDIC CRA notice repeat 

• CRA Notice Changes for FDIC Institutions 

• On January 18, 2017, the FDIC published a rule changing the 
Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) notice requirements for 
FDIC-regulated institutions. The change affects the CRA Notice 
posted in both main and branch office locations, and reflects 
technical revisions regarding the manner in which the FDIC will 
receive public comments considered in a CRA evaluation. 
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FDIC CRA notice repeat 

• The Joint Final rule, which also included revisions to small and 
intermediate-small bank asset thresholds, made two technical, 
non-substantive changes. The first change was a revision to the 
responsible individual’s title from “Regional Manager” to 
“Regional Director”. The second change concerned a reference 
to a specially-created web page in which the FDIC can receive 
public comments electronically. Institutions are required to 
update the notice using prescribed language provided in the 
Federal Register, and to print and post the revised notice in its 
main and branch locations. 
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OCC Violations of Laws and Regulations 
Updated Guidance 

• OCC BULLETIN 2017-18 
• The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) updated 

today its policies and procedures regarding violations of laws 
and regulations. This policy is effective on July 1, 2017 

• Here are the goals and practices the agency is implementing: 
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OCC Violations of Laws and Regulations 
Updated Guidance 

• Ensure consistency of the purpose, processes, and procedures 
within and across all OCC lines of business, including 
community, midsize, and large banks; federal branches and 
agencies; and banks overseen by the OCC’s Special Supervision 
group 
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OCC Violations of Laws and Regulations 
Updated Guidance 

• Communicate violations using a consistent format: 
• Legal citation and description 
• Summary of relevant statutory or regulatory requirements 
• Facts supporting the violation and root cause(s) 
• Corrective action(s) required 
• Board and management’s commitment(s) to corrective action 

 

 

 

 

 



200 

OCC Violations of Laws and Regulations 
Updated Guidance 

• Reinforce the importance of timely and thorough follow-up and 
tracking of bank management’s corrective actions and 
milestones to those actions 

• Convey the relationship of violations to matters requiring 
attention, CAMELS/ITCC or ROCA ratings and the bank’s risk 
appetite and profile 

• Emphasize the need for examiners to communicate effectively 
and in a timely manner with the bank’s board of directors, the 
bank’s management team, and OCC supervisors 
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OCC Violations of Laws and Regulations 
Updated Guidance 

• Examiners must communicate all OCC-identified violations to 
facilitate timely and effective corrective action by the board and 
management. Examiners must communicate substantive 
violations to the bank in a report  of examination (ROE) or 
supervisory letter, including substantive self-identified violations 
in certain circumstances.  
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OCC Violations of Laws and Regulations 
Updated Guidance 

• Examiners must communicate less substantive OCC-identified 
violations in a separate written document if the examiners do 
not include them in an ROE or supervisory letter. Examiners 
may use discretion to determine whether less substantive, self-
identified violations warrant communication in a separate 
written document. 

• The first time an examiner communicates a violation to a bank, 
the examiner must label the violation with one or more of the 
following attributes: 
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OCC Violations of Laws and Regulations 
Updated Guidance 

• New: 

• Self-identified:  

• Repeat: 

• Upon completing a follow-up activity, examiners must determine 
whether to label a violation as past due, pending validation, or 
closed 
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DOL FAQs on Fiduciary Rule 

• CONFLICT OF INTEREST FAQs (Transition Period) 

•  U.S. Department of Labor 

• On April 7, 2017, the Department announced that the 
applicability dates in its Fiduciary Rule and related prohibited 
transaction exemptions would be delayed from April 10, 2017 to 
June 9, 2017, with certain provisions in the exemptions further 
delayed to January 1, 2018. 
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DOL FAQs on Fiduciary Rule 

• Q1. When do firms and their advisers have to comply with the 
conditions of the new Best Interest Contract (BIC) Exemption 
and the Class Exemption for Principal Transactions in Certain 
Assets Between Investment Advice Fiduciaries and Employee 
Benefit Plans and IRAs (Principal Transactions Exemption)? 
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DOL FAQs on Fiduciary Rule 

• Firms and their advisers must comply with the exemptions’ 
conditions after June 9, 2017 if they receive compensation for 
investment advice in a manner that would violate the prohibited 
transaction rules, which are designed to protect retirement 
investors from conflicts of interest that same date, the BIC 
Exemption and Principal Transactions Exemption will become 
available to fiduciary advisers. At the outset, however, and for a 
transition period extending until January 1, 2018, fewer 
conditions will apply to financial institutions and advisers that 
seek to rely upon the exemptions. 
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DOL FAQs on Fiduciary Rule 

• For the convenience of users, the Department has also 
republished the Best Interest Contract Exemption, the Principal 
Transactions Exemption and PTE 84-24, with the amended 
applicability dates, on EBSA’s website. See 
www.dol.gov/agencies/ebsa/laws-and-regulations/rules-and-
regulations/completed-rulemaking/1210-AB32-2. 
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DOL FAQs on Fiduciary Rule 

• During the transition period, financial institutions and advisers 
must comply with the “impartial conduct standards” which are 
consumer protection standards that ensure that advisers adhere 
to fiduciary norms and basic standards of fair dealing. The 
standards specifically require advisers and financial institutions 
to: 
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DOL FAQs on Fiduciary Rule 

• Give advice that is in the “best interest” of the retirement 
investor. This best interest standard has two chief components: 
prudence and loyalty: 

• Under the prudence standard, the advice must meet a professional 
standard of care as specified in the text of the exemption; 

• Under the loyalty standard, the advice must be based on the 
interests of the customer, rather than the competing financial 
interest of the adviser or firm; 
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DOL FAQs on Fiduciary Rule 

• Charge no more than reasonable compensation; and 
• Make no misleading statements about investment transactions, 

compensation, and conflicts of interest 
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DOL FAQs on Fiduciary Rule 

• Absent further action from the Department, the transition period 
ends on January 1, 2018, and full compliance with all of the 
exemptions’ conditions is required for firms and advisers that 
choose to engage in transactions that would otherwise be 
prohibited under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code. These 
conditions importantly include, among other things, 
requirements to execute a contract with IRA investors with 
certain enforceable promises, make specified disclosures, and 
implement specified policies and procedures to protect 
retirement investors from advice that is not in their best 
interest. action claims in court. 
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DOL FAQs on Fiduciary Rule 

• The contract could require the IRA investor to pursue individual 
claims through arbitration, but must preserve the investors’ 
ability to bring class action claims in court. 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• US DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

• A Financial System That Creates Economic Opportunities Banks 
and Credit Unions 

•  Report to President Donald J. Trump 

• Executive Order 13772 on Core Principles for Regulating the 
United States Financial System 

• Executive Summary 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Introduction 

• President Donald J. Trump established the policy of his 
Administration to regulate the United States financial system in 
a manner consistent with a set of Core Principles. These 
principles were set forth in Executive Order 13772 on February 
3, 2017. This Report is prepared by the U.S. Department of the 
Treasury, under the direction of Secretary Steven T. Mnuchin, in 
response to the Executive Order.  
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• This Report, and subsequent Reports, will identify any laws, 
treaties, regulations, guidance, reporting and record keeping 
requirements, and other Government policies that inhibit 
Federal regulation of the U.S. financial system in a manner 
consistent with the Core Principles. 

• Scope of This Report and Subsequent Reports 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Given the breadth of the financial system and the unique 
regulatory regime governing each seg- ment, Treasury will 
divide its review of the financial system into a series of reports: 

• The depository system, covering banks, savings associations, and 
credit unions of all sizes, types and regulatory charters 

• Summary of Recommendations for Regulatory Reform 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Addressing the U.S. Regulatory Structure 

• Treasury recommends that Congress take action to reduce 
fragmentation, overlap, and duplication in the U.S. regulatory 
structure. This could include consolidating regulators with 
similar missions and more clearly defining regulatory mandates. 
Increased accountability for all regulators can be achieved 
through oversight by an appointed board or commission or, in 
the case of a director-led agency, appropriate control and 
oversight by the Executive Branch, including the right of 
removal at will by the President. 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

•  Appendix B 

• Table of Recommendations 

• Community Financial Institutions 

• RECOMMENDATIONS FOR COMMUNITY BANKS 

• Simplifying the capital regime for community banks: Treasury 
recommends that bank regulators explore exempting community 
banks from the risk-based capital regime implementing the Basel 
III standards. In addition, if required, Dodd-Frank’s Collins 
Amendment should be amended (Dodd-Frank Section 171).  
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Raising the Small Bank Holding Company Policy Statement asset 
threshold: Treasury recommends raising the asset threshold of the 
Federal Reserve’s Small Bank Holding Company and Savings and 
Loan Holding Company Policy Statement to $2 billion (from the 
current $1 billion). 

• RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FEDERALLY-INSURED CREDIT UNIONS 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Easing the NCUA regulations relating to credit union capital and 
stress-testing requirements: NCUA should revise the risk-based 
capital requirements to only apply to credit unions with total assets 
in excess of $10 billion or eliminate altogether risk-based capital 
requirements for credit unions satisfying a 10% simple leverage 
(net worth) test. 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

•  EXAMINATIONS 

• Reviewing examination overlap and duplication: Treasury 

recommends that: (i) Congress consider raising the current 

asset threshold for smaller banks eligible for an 18 month 

examination cycle; (ii) the NCUA implements parallel changes to 

extend examination cycles for smaller credit unions; and (iii) all 

regulators expand upon current efforts to further coordinate and 

rationalize their examination and data collection procedures to 

promote accountability and clarity. 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

•  AGRICULTURAL AND RURAL CREDIT 

• Minimizing compliance burdens for rural and agriculture lenders: 

Providing banking services in rural areas is particularly difficult 

given the scarcity of key service providers, such as appraisers 

and other legal and compliance staff. As such, the regulators 

need to recognize these circumstances and provide special 

consideration to agriculture and rural banks’ compliance 

challenges 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• INCREASING THRESHOLD FOR MAKING SMALL CREDITOR 

QUALIFIED MORTGAGE (QM) LOANS 

• Reforming mortgage requirements: A detailed evaluation of 

mortgage requirements is addressed in the Residential 

Mortgage section. 

• Improving the Regulatory Engagement Model 

• IMPROVING THE PROCESS FOR REMEDIATING IDENTIFIED 

REGULATORY ISSUES 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Treasury recommends an interagency reassessment of the 

volume and nature of matters requiring attention (MRAs), 

matters requiring  immediate attention (MRIAs), and consent 

orders (COs) to evaluate impact, consistency and overlap and to 

establish consistent interagency standards. 

• Treasury recommends that regulators and banking organizations 

develop an improved approach to addressing and clearing 

regulatory actions. 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT ACT 

• It is very important to have the benefits arising from banks’ 

CRA investments better align with the interest and needs of the 

communities that they serve and to improve the current 

supervisory and regulatory framework for CRA. Treasury 

expects to comprehensively assess how the CRA could be 

improved to achieve these goals, which will include soliciting 

input from individual consumer advocates and other 

stakeholders.  
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Aligning the regulatory oversight of CRA activities with a 

heightened focus on community investments will become a high 

priority for the Secretary. 

• Consumer Financial Protection Bureau 

•  ADOPTING STRUCTURAL REFORMS TO MAKE THE CFPB MORE 

ACCOUNTABLE TO THE PRESIDENT, CONGRESS AND THE 

AMERICAN PEOPLE 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• ENSURING THAT REGULATED ENTITIES HAVE CERTAINTY 

REGARDING CFPB INTERPRETATIONS OF THE LAW BEFORE 

SUBJECTING THEM TO ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS 

•  ELIMINATING CFPB’S DUPLICATIVE AND UNNECESSARY 

SUPERVISORY AUTHORITY 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Congress should repeal the CFPB’s supervisory authority. The 

responsibility to supervise banks should be entrusted to the 

prudential regulators. Supervision of nonbanks should be 

returned to state regulators. 

• Residential Mortgage Lending 

• MORTGAGE LOAN ORIGINATION 

• Adjust and Clarify the ATR Rule and Eliminate the “QM Patch”: 
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Modify Appendix Q of the ATR Rule:  

• Revise the Points and Fees Cap for QM Loans:  

• Increase the Threshold for Making Small Creditor QM Loans:  

• Clarify and Modify TRID:  

• Improve Flexibility and Accountability of Loan Originator 

Compensation Rule:  
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Treasury Bank and Credit Union 
Recommendations 

• Delay Implementation of HMDA Reporting Requirements:  

• MORTGAGE LOAN SERVICING 

• Place a Moratorium on Additional Mortgage Servicing Rules:  
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Misc to do list 

• Do a refresh on your ATR rule requirements, for QM and 
non-QM to make sure verification of income and assets is 
documented 

• For mortgage servicing, do a re-test to make sure your 
foreclosure processors are in constant communication 
with your loss mitigation processors 

• Look at your escrow disbursement practices – is the 
correct insurance payment going to the correct borrower’s 
insurance? 
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Misc to do list 

• For mortgage loan periodic statements, look at the 
specificity of the language describing transaction activity 

• For student loan servicers, check your handling of 
deferments and deferment terminations as well as 
interest capitalization 

• If you are an FDIC examined bank and you missed the 
CRA notice update last quarter, now is the time to make 
the change in the notice 
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Misc to do list 

• For OCC supervised institutions – share with 
management/board the updated guidance on violations of 
laws and regulations 

• Ensure your understanding and compliance with the new 
DOL fiduciary rule 
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Questions? 
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Save $100 
Offer Expires August 31, 2017* 

 
www.bai.org/baibeacon/register 

 
 

*Only FDIC insured banks and credit unions, government entities, and non-profit associations are eligible for Early Bird pricing and discount offers.  
Discount offers are not retroactive to registered attendees and cannot be combined with other offers. 
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